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JOHN L. BURRIS, Esqg. State Bar #69888

BENJAMIN NISENBAUM, Esq. /State Bar #222173

LAW OFFICES OF JOHN L. BURRIS
Airport Corporate Centre

7677 Oak port Street, Suite 1120
Oakland, California 94621

Telephone: 5510§ 839-5200

Facsimile: (510) 839-3882

Attorneys for Plaintiff
HUNG LAM

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

HUNG LAM, individually, through his next
friend, KATHY LAM,

Plaintiff,
VS.

CITY OF SAN JOSE, a municipal corporation;
LARRY ESQUIVEL, in his capacity as Chief of
Police for the CITY OF SAN JOSE; Officer
DONDI WEST, individually and in her official
position as a San Jose Police officer, and DOES
1-25, inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES FOR
VIOLATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

INTRODUCTION

1. This case arises from the unlawful shooting of HUNG LAM, a 36 year old Vietnamese

national lawfully residing in the United States, by San Jose Police Department Officer DONDI

WEST in the City of San Jose . At the time of the shooting, Mr. LAM was outside in the front of his

residence in San Jose. Mr. LAM was suicidal, and he was holding his cell phone and a knife in his

hands and was otherwise isolated in the front of his residence in San Jose. He pressed the knife into
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his abdomen, threatening only to hurt himself. Mr. LAM was no threat to anyone, except
potentially himself. Minutes before the shooting, Mr. LAM was speaking with a neighbor who was
seeking to calm him down and who did not feel threatened by Mr. LAM, when Officer DONDI
WEST inexplicably shot Mr. LAM in the back causing Mr. LAM’s form of paraplegia. Mr. LAM
who was once a vibrant dancer has been rendered a permanent disabled paraplegic.

JURISDICTION

2. This action arises under Title 42 of the United States Code, Section 1983. Title 28 of the
United States Code, Sections 1331 and 1343 confers jurisdiction upon this Court. The unlawful acts
and practices alleged herein occurred in the City of San Jose, California, which is within this judicial
district.

PARTIES

3. Plaintiff herein mentioned, HUNG LAM, was at all times and remains a legal resident of the
United States residing in the City of San Jose. He has been rendered a paraplegic by the instant
shooting.

4. Defendant CITY OF SAN JOSE (“CITY”) is a municipal corporation, duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of California. The City operates under its authority the SAN
JOSE Police Department.

5. Defendant LARRY ESQUIVEL (“ESQUIVEL”) was at all times mentioned herein was the
police chief of the City of San Jose. He is being sued in his official capacity as Chief of Police.

6. Defendant DONDI WEST (“WEST”) was at all times mentioned herein a police officer with
the City of San Jose. She is being sued in both her individual and official capacity.

7. Plaintiff is ignorant of the true names and capacities of Defendants DOES 1 through 25,

inclusive, and therefore sues these defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiff is informed and
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believes and thereon alleges that each Defendant so named is responsible in some manner for the
injuries and damages sustained by Plaintiff as set forth herein. Plaintiff will amend his complaint to
state the names and capacities of DOES 1-25, inclusive, when they have been ascertained.

8. Plaintiffs have requested documents and records pertaining to the subject-incident from
Defendant CITY, pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. Defendant CITY has not provided
any of the requested information.

9. Inengaging in the conduct described herein, Defendants acted under the color of law and in
the course and scope of their employment with the City of San Jose. In engaging in the conduct
described herein, Defendant police officers exceeded the authority vested in them as police officers
under the United States and California Constitutions and as police officers employed by Defendant
City of San Jose.

10. For State law causes of action related to Federal claims, Plaintiff is required to comply with
an administrative claim requirement under California law. Plaintiff has filed the required
administrative claim with Defendant City of San Jose, in compliance with California law
requirements. Plaintiff incorporates state law causes of action into this Complaint.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

11. On January 3, 2014, a call was placed to the San Jose Police Department reporting that a
person was having a mental breakdown at a residence on Cape Horn Drive in San Jose. The call
pertained to Plaintiff HUNG LAM, who was suicidal and in possession of a knife that he was
threatening to use against himself. Mr. LAM had not threatened anyone, and the caller reported to
police only that Mr. LAM could hurt himself. There was no indication that anyone other than Mr.

LAM was in danger.

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND DAMAGES - 3




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

NN RN RN DN RN N DD P B BB R R R R R, e
©® N o OB~ W N P O © ©O N o 0o b~ W N R» O

Case 5:14-cv-00877-PSG Document 1 Filed 02/26/14 Page 4 of 11

12. Shortly thereafter, Defendant San Jose Police officer, DONDI WEST arrived on the scene in
front of Mr. LAM’s residence. Mr. LAM’s next-door neighbors, who are a retired married couple,
observed all events as they occurred. One of the neighoring retired married couple witnesses, the
wife, is a retired deputy sheriff, trained in the use of force and in responding to subjects who may be
suicidal. Plaintiff alleges that all peace officers in the State of California, and nationwide, are
required to be trained in the use of force and in responding to potentially suicidal subjects to
minimize the risk of harm to the suicidal subject.

13. Mr. LAM had a kitchen knife in his hand and was threatening to hurt himself. He had a
cellular phone in his other hand and he was talking with the female neighbor who was seeking to
calm him down. When Defendant officer WEST arrived on-scene, she knew she was responding to a
potentially suicidal subject in Mr. LAM and that “best practices” training dictates that an officer is
suppose to attempt to “de-escalate” the situation.

14. Immediately, Defendant officer WEST escalated the situation by running toward Mr. LAM
shouting commands, such as drop the knife and get on the ground at Mr. LAM who was still talking
with the female neighbor and not facing the officer.

15. Defendant officer WEST without speaking with the witness continued running toward Mr.
LAM yelling and screaming. Defendant officer WEST knew or should have known that her conduct
of yelling and screaming at a potentially suicidal person was contrary to the “best practices” because
training dictates that an officer is suppose to “de-escalate” not “escalate” the situation by their
conduct.

16. Mr. LAM was not threatening to anyone but himself yet Defendant Officer West charged him
when she was within 10 to 15 feet and Mr. LAM’s back was to her. Defendant Officer West

discharged her weapon twice hitting Mr. LAM once in the lower back, once in the back. Mr. LAM
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did not approach the officer nor did he seek to run. In fact, when his back was to the officer, he
dropped his phone and pointed the knife at his own stomach. This is when Defendant Officer WEST
discharged her weapon. Another San Jose Police officer arrived on the scene but that officer did not
discharge his weapon. Mr. LAM never threatened any officer or neighbor physically or verbally.

17.  Paramedics arrived on the scene and transported Mr. LAM to Regional Medical
Center in San Jose. Mr. LAM’s life was saved by the ensuing surgery, which repaired some of the
damage caused by the gunshot wounds to his back. The bullet struck Mr. LAM’s aorta, lungs, and
kidney. The gunshot wounds also caused paraplegia, the permanent loss of mobility in Mr. LAM’s
legs.

18. Even though no reasonable officer would have perceived Mr. LAM as posing a threat
to anyone other than himself, Mr. LAM was unconscionably, maliciously criminally charged with
assaulting an officer. That patently false criminal charge was subsequently dismissed as of this filing.

19.  Asaresult of the shooting, Mr. LAM is a paraplegic, unable to work, and any
psychiatric, mental or psychological condition, or state of mind leading to acting out in a suicidal
manner has been extraordinarily aggravated by the wrongful conduct of Defendant Officer WEST.

20.  Plaintiff alleges on information and belief that defendant Officer WEST is responsible
for creating any circumstance that, regardless of how flawed her reasoning was, in her own mind may
have wrongfully justified shooting Mr. LAM. She was never in danger, acted inconsistently with
being in danger prior to shooting Mr. LAM, and witnesses confirm that she provoked and caused the
shooting, not Mr. LAM. To that end, Defendant Officer WEST’s conduct exhibited fundamental and

Unconstitutional training by Defendant CITY and ESQUIVEL in the use of force and responding to
suicidal subjects, and/or Unconstitutional policies by Defendant CITY and ESQUIVEL in the use of

force and responding to suicidal subjects.
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DAMAGES

21.  The shooting of Plaintiff HUNG LAM described herein was brutal, malicious, and
done without any just provocation or cause, proximately causing Plaintiff’s injuries and resulting
damages.

22. As a proximate result of defendants’ conduct, plaintiff HUNG LAM suffered pain and
physical injuries, including paralysis, nerve damage, paraplegia, and soft tissue injuries. Plaintiff
HUNG LAM suffered and continues to suffer lost wages and aggravation of pre-existing suicidal
conditions. As a further proximate result of defendants’ conduct, plaintiff suffered severe and
extreme emotional distress, fear, terror, anxiety, humiliation, and loss of his sense of security, dignity,
and pride. Plaintiff was further damaged by having criminal charges maliciously filed against him,
and having to defend those malicious criminal charges until they were dismissed.

23.  Plaintiff HUNG LAM was assaulted, battered, and shot without any just provocation
or cause, by Defendant Officer WEST. Plaintiff HUNG LAM’s physical injuries include, but are not
limited to the following: Paraplegia from the waist down, rendered unable to work, aggravation of
pre-existing suicidal conditions, and was mentally and emotionally injured and damaged as a
proximate result of this incident.

24. Plaintiff HUNG LAM will require in-home visits from a nurse, and daily physical therapy to
achieve as much physical recovery as possible from the debilitating injuries.

25. The conduct of Defendant Officer WEST was malicious, wanton, and oppressive. Plaintiff
are therefore entitled to an award of punitive damages against Defendant Officer WEST.

26. Plaintiff found it necessary to engage the services of private counsel to vindicate his rights
under the law. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to an award of all attorneys’ fees incurred in relation to

this action for violation of his civil rights.

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND DAMAGES - 6




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

NN RN RN DN RN N DD P B BB R R R R R, e
©® N o OB~ W N P O © ©O N o 0o b~ W N R» O

Case 5:14-cv-00877-PSG Document 1 Filed 02/26/14 Page 7 of 11

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(42 U.S.C. Section 1983)
(Against Defendants WEST, and DOES 1-10)

27. Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 26 of
this Complaint.

28. In doing the acts complained of herein, Defendant WEST and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive,
and/or each of them, acted under color of law to deprive Plaintiff of certain constitutionally protected
rights, including, but not limited to:

a. The right to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures, as guaranteed by the
Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution;

b. The right to be free from malicious prosecution by police officers, as guaranteed by
the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as hereinafter set forth.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(42 U.S.C. section 1983)
(Against Defendants CITY, ESQUIVEL and DOES 11-25)

29. Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 28 of
this Complaint.

30. Plaintiff alleges that high ranking City of San Jose officials, including high ranking police
supervisors, such as Defendant LARRY ESQUIVEL, DOES 11 through 25, and/or each of them,
knew and/or reasonably should have known, that Defendant Officer WEST, and other SAN JOSE
Police Department officers, were untrained in, or trained below the standard of care, in the use of

force and responding to subjects who appear suicidal, act in a suicidal manner, and/or who manifest
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symptoms of suicidality, all in violation of Plaintiffs rights under the 4™ and 14™ Amendments to the
United States Constitution.
31. Said rights are substantive guarantees under the Fourth and/or Fourteenth Amendments to the
United States Constitution.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as hereinafter set forth.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Assault and Battery)
(Against Defendants WEST, and DOES 1-10)

32. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 31 of this
Complaint.

33. Defendants WEST, and DOES 1-10, inclusive, placed Plaintiff in immediate fear of death and
severe bodily harm by shooting, attacking and battering him without any just provocation or cause.

34. These defendants’ conduct was neither privileged nor justified under statute or common law.

35. As a proximate result of defendants’ conduct, Plaintiff suffered damages as hereinafter set
forth.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as hereinafter set forth.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress)
(Against Defendants WEST, amd DOES 1-10)

36. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 35 of this
Complaint.

37. The conduct of Defendants WEST, and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, as set forth herein, was
extreme and outrageous and beyond the scope of conduct which should be tolerated by citizens in a

democratic and civilized society. Defendants committed these extreme and outrageous acts with the
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intent to inflict severe mental and emotional distress upon Plaintiff.

38. As a proximate result of Defendants’ willful, intentional and malicious conduct, plaintiff
HUNG LAM suffered severe and extreme mental and emotional distress. Therefore, Plaintiff is
entitled to an award of punitive damages as against said defendants. Plaintiff has suffered damages
as hereinafter set forth.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as hereinafter set forth.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of Civil Code Section 52.1)
(Against Defendants WEST, and DOES 1-10)

39. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 38 of this
Complaint.

40. The conduct of Defendants WEST, and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, as described herein,
acting in the course and scope of their employment for Defendant CITY, violated California Civil
Code Section 52.1, in that they interfered with Plaintifft HUNG LAM’s exercise and enjoyment of his
civil rights, through use of wrongful and excessive force, and failure to make any proper or
reasonable arrest of said Plaintiff.

41. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of Civil Code Section 52.1, Plaintiff
suffered violation of his constitutional rights, and suffered damages as set forth herein.

42. Since this conduct occurred in the course and scope of their employment, Defendant CITY is
therefore liable to Plaintiff pursuant to respondeat superior.

43. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief and an award of his reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant
to Civil Code Section 52.1(h).

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief, as hereinafter set forth.
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Negligence)
(Against Defendants WEST, DOES 1-10)

44. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 43 of this
complaint, except for any and all allegations of intentional, malicious, extreme, outrageous, wanton,
and oppressive conduct by defendants, and any and all allegations requesting punitive damages.

45. At all times herein mentioned, Defendants WEST, and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, were
subject to a duty of care to avoid causing unnecessary physical harm and distress to persons through
their use of force and making of arrests. The wrongful conduct of Defendants, as set forth herein, did
not comply with the standard of care to be exercised by reasonable persons, proximately causing
plaintiff to suffer injuries and damages as set forth herein. Pursuant to Government Code Section
815.2(a), Defendant CITY is vicariously liable to Plaintiff for his injuries and damages suffered as
alleged herein, incurred as a proximate result of the aforementioned wrongful conduct of Defendants.

46. As a proximate result of Defendants’ negligent conduct, Plaintiff suffered severe physical
injury, severe emotional and mental distress, injury having a traumatic effect on Plaintiff’s emotional
tranquility, and suffered damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as hereinafter set forth.

JURY DEMAND

47. Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial in this action.

I
n
n
n

i
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PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief, as follows:

1. For general damages in a sum according to proof;

2. For special damages in a sum according to proof;

3. For punitive damages in a sum according to proof;

4. For injunctive relief enjoining Defendant CITY OF SAN JOSE from authorizing,
allowing, or ratifying the practice by any peace officer employee of Defendant CITY
from using excessive and unreasonable force against persons, pursuant to California
Civil Code Section 52.1; Additionally, enacted polices regarding the handling of
mentally impaired persons with corresponding training on such polices.

5. For violation of California Civil Code Sections 52 and 52.1, statutory damages, and
reasonable attorney’s fees;

6. For violation of California Civil Code Section 52(b), punitive damages against
Defendant police officers, $25,000.00 for each offense and reasonable attorney’s fees;

1. For reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 1988;

8. For cost of suit herein incurred; and

9. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: February 24, 2014 THE LAW OFFICES OF JOHN L. BURRIS

[s/ John L. Burris

JOHN L. BURRIS, Esq.
BENJAMIN NISENBAUM, Esq.
Attorneys for Plaintiff

HUNG LAM
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